
REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING 

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN GROVE 

LEE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

FEBRUARY 13, 2023 MINUTES APPROVE MARCH 13, 2023 

 

On February 13, 2023 the Regular meeting of the Village of Franklin Grove, held at the 

Village Hall, 105 E. South Street, Franklin Grove, Lee County, Illinois, was called to 

order by President David Atkinson at 7:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL  

 

Present:  Trustees Shaun Thompson, Nick Sprague, Paul Erisman, Heather Grove, 

Amanda Lanning, President David Atkinson and Clerk Stephanie Sprague 

 

Absent: Trustees Kydreel Green, Attorney Considine 

 

MI NUTES 

 

Motion  made by S. Thompson, seconded by P. Erisman to approve the meeting minutes 

of January 9, 2022.  Passed:  5/0 

 

VISITORS 

 

Amy Runkle and Kate Gross presented the board with proposed ordinance changes for 

fowl to allow for chickens.  Scott Spangler recommended removing the no slaughtering 

restriction.  Amy stated it was put in as not to attract coyotes.  Amy stated if it did go 

through the library would possibly have start up packets and host programs to educate 

people on raising chickens, etc.  President Atkinson stated we would have to have a 

public hearing and asked how the board felt about it.  There was one board member 

opposed and the rest were okay.  President Atkinson stated he would like to see them 

closer to their dwelling than their neighbors dwelling.  Kate stated each permit has to be 

approved and show where the coop would be placed.  President Atkinson stated the 

majority of the board was on board so the next step will be the public hearing. 

 

Heather Grove previously met with Rooney’s to discuss outdoor events for the summer.  

The dates are June 17, July 15, August during the Harvest Fest and August 19.  The times 

will be from 4-7 and 8-11.  John Lauer stated he is primarily looking for permission, a 

permit of sorts.  President Atkinson stated he doesn’t see a problem, but he will look into 

drafting a permit. 

 

GENERAL  ISSUES 

 

None 

 

 

VIL LAG E CLERKôS REPORT 

 

Moti on made by S. Thompson, seconded by P. Erisman to pay bills.  Passed:  5/0 

Clerk Sprague advised the remainder due to Helm Civil was approved but wondered if 

we shouldn’t contact Gallagher Engineering to have streets looked at before the check is 



sent as the streets need reswept and there are patches where the seal coat has come up by 

the fire station, elementary school and Methodist Church. 

 

Clerk Sprague advised the village received a thank you card from Ehrmann, Gehlbach, 

Badger & Considine to thank us for the meat and cheese tray we gave them in December. 

 

John Nicholson stated the zoning board has met 5 times and have marked up proposed 

changes for the zoning ordinance.  Once the changes have been marked up on the existing 

ordinance documents they will be brought to the board.  

 

POLI CE REPORT 

(Chief Harney) 

Complaints/Calls for Service – 8 

Traffic Stops – 11 

Traffic Arrests – 4  

Traffic Warnings – 18 

House Check – 3 

 

LEGAL ISSUES 

(Attorney Considine) 

 

None 

 

COMMI TTEE REPORTS 

 

STREETS & ALLEY S 

(N. Sprague Chairman) 

Trustee Sprague informed the board the plow truck is down.  Paul stated the parts have 

been ordered.   

Trustee Sprague asked if we could get Atkinson Trucking equipment moved off village 

property.  Jennifer Atkinson was extremely upset by this request and stated for them to 

just call when they need something moved.  President Atkinson stated he would get it 

moved. 

 

WATE R &  SEWER 

(A. Lanning Chairman) 

Trustee Sprague asked who the licensed water operator is.  President Atkinson stated they 

are in the process of getting someone.  Trustee Sprague stated he has the contact 

information for someone that is interested.  President Atkinson stated to get Trustee 

Lanning the information. 

Scott Spangler asked if we could get one of the employees to take the manhole cover and 

measure how far down the sewer line is for the architect they are working with for the 

restroom at the park. 

President Atkinson stated the sanitation board would like to disband.  Amanda will be 

getting prices on a new jetter. 

 

COMMUNIT Y DEVEL OPMENT 

(H. Grove Chairman) 

 

PROPERTIES 

(P. Erisman Chairman) 

 



Trustee Erisman advised the board legally we need to do background checks on our 

employees. Marilyn advised the lower end of the drive at the park is dark and needs more 

light.  Paul advised there is someone willing to pay for it and Willy is willing to do the 

work. 

Paul advised they have new steel shoes for the snow plow. 

Paul advised the employees are keeping the shop too hot. 

 

FINANCE AND INSURANCE COMMITTEE  

 (S. Thompson Chairman) 

 

Trustee Thompson stated he spoke to someone regarding IMRF and they stated the rate 

study takes 6-8 weeks and he has been waiting since last month for them to get back to 

him.  There is a $623 fee for the rate study and that is good for 1 year.  Our employees 

are required to have a 218 agreement to be eligible for IMRF. 

Trustee Thompson asked if we could have the hydrants flushed since its going to be nice.  

President Atkinson answered yes, we can flush hydrants. 

 

TOURISM  

(K. Green Chairman)  

 

None 

 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION /EARLY  WARNING  

None 

 

Marilyn Spangler gave Trustee Erisman the map for the parking lot at the park to see 

about getting that taken care of and a friendly reminder the basketball hoops still need 

attention.  She advised the Easter Egg Hunt will be on April 8th and the Car Show will be 

on May 13. 

 

As no further business was brought before the board, a motion to adjourn was made by S. 

Thompson, seconded by H. Grove and carried by unanimous vote at 8:08 p.m.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Stephanie M. Sprague 

Village Clerk 


